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SUMMARY

The building currently known as the Ragged Schaodl Ardley Centre in, Blackburn
has been earmarked for redevelopment in order itd bo older persons’ extra care
scheme. The school is of local historical significa, providing for the poor and
needy and, as a result, a condition for the ardbgaal recording of the building was
attached to the planning consent. Following advircen the Lancashire County
Archaeology Service (LCAS) and a verbal brief, Blaarn with Darwen Borough
Council (BDBC), commissioned Oxford Archaeology MofOA North) to carry out
a programme of archaeological building recordinge Ragged School is positioned
on Bent Street, Blackburn, which is situated atgbethern end of Stonyhurst Road,
approximately 0.8km to the west of Blackburn toventte (NGR SD 6778 2783).

An English Heritage Level I/ll standard photographind brief written record of the
building was carried out, together with a desk-Hagssessment, which comprised a
search of both published and unpublished recorlds.Work was carried out in three
stages, the exterior of the building being photpgeal in November 2009, the interior
inspection being carried out in April 2009, and th@w removed war memorials
photographed in May 2009.

The Blackburn Ragged School was established in b§8ohn Thomas Walkden and
James Dixon. In the late summer of that year a grousome 50 teachers from
various Sunday Schools, of different denominationBlackburn, met to share their
concerns about the plight of poor children in tber, and set about setting up a
‘Ragged School'. Initially, the school was housedsmall rented premises on the
corner of Lune Street and Leyland Street. The finseting occurred on Saturday
October 29" 1881 and Sunday School teaching began on Sundmp&@c¥ 1881,
and 198 children attended. The word ‘Ragged’ waamrdescription of the attendees,
for they are described as being ‘ragged in bothylmdl mind with bare heads, bare
legs and bare feetThe school was founded prior to national orgarosat so free
meals were thus provided both on Sunday and alsmglthe week, and an old
clothes room benefited many children over the yeacome.

The upper floors of the building on the corner ahke Street and Leyland Street were
refurbished in November 1881, which allowed sepamabf children by age. As
numbers attending the school grew, the premisegedransuitable and new premises
were sought. A bazaar was held to raise funds faeva school site, and the proceeds
enabled the purchase, at £150, of a redundantibgitth Bent Street, belonging to St
Peter's Day School, which was empty and had beadaraned. In 1895 the entire
school was moved into an empty mill on Harley Streleile the old St Peters’ School
building was demolished and a new building was traoged on the same site. This
took two years to complete and on July B397 the foundation stones were laid by
Earl Compton MP, together with Walkden and Dixomying a ceremony which
attracted a substantial crowd. The architects efriaw school building were Messrs.
Briggs and Wolstenholme, and the projected cost W2600. The school was
officially opened on Saturday Octobét 8898 by Mrs R A Yerburgh.

By 1907 the new school building was becoming toalgmecessitating an extension
at a cost of some £750. The architects were theesafessrs. Briggs and
Wolstenholme. The structure was to be a two-stadition built in the same style,
and would contain a room (mission-hall) capabldalding seating for 200 people.

For the use of Blackburn with Darwen Borough Colnci © OA North: June 2009
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The foundation stone was laid on SaturddyALigust 1908 by Robert A. Yerburgh
and was opened in December the same year by MriT JPathe total cost being
£936 10s.

In 1914 improvements were carried out to the boddisuch as installation of electric
lighting throughout and removal of some internalllsvavhich were replaced with

folding partitions, which was to be again fundedéyazaar. The First World War
effort required that some of the staff go to figind every male of age went. In total,
339 past and present students took part, and iheies are inscribed on the Roll of
Honour. The Roll of Honour was unveiled on Sund&§ September 1919 by Sir
Henry Hibbert. It was made of alabaster and a neadapicts the figure of St George,
in the central panel.

In 1931, the year of the jubilee of the Ragged $tha commemorative booklet
outlining the history of the Ragged School was pomdl. During the great depression
of 1929-1931, when the value of cotton had deptedito almost nothing, the cotton
towns in Lancashire, such as Blackburn, sufferezhtly. The Ragged School once
again stepped into the breech and provided muctiegeassistance to those poorest
members of society. By 1931 there were two Sundayd@&s Thirteen classes of
mainly young scholars were held upstairs, and deainss22 classes comprised 300-
400 children. There was an infant room containipgraximately 100-150 children,
all under seven years of age. In 1936 James Dixed, énd on 9 May 1937 two
stained glass windows, depicting scenes from fieeoli St Paul, were unveiled and
are dedicated to his memory and that of John ThaNelkden.

In 1952 the Blackburn Development Plan set out psafs that involved redeveloping
the area around the Ragged School. The Ragged ISefasoto remain however, and
was to be in a more appropriate open setting ad&asuburb’, with more room for
expansion. The area was to consist of three-sftatsyand two-storey houses most of
which still survive. It was one of the first of tlaeeas in the 1952 master plan to be
redeveloped, which outlined the pattern of redguelent for the following 15 years.
Following the redevelopment, the school’'s youthivatds increased, and plans to
extend the premises, including a two-storey bugdinhich would accommodate 200
members, were put forward. At this time the schdaimed to have the oldest youth
club in the British Isles. In 1961, an appeal fands to pay for the extension scheme
was launched, and on 2@®ctober 1966 the ‘ultra modern’ new youth centr@sw
opened by Earl Peel.

By the mid 1970s, the building had become too ldoge¢he needs of the school and,
combined with rising costs and falling income, asadecided to put it up for sale. It
was purchased by Lancashire County Council wheetbésck part of the building to
provide a day care scheme for the elderly, althotighRagged School continued
some religious and charitable work The change wadenon 1% February 1979
following building conversion and improvements. 1895 the Ragged School became
part of the United Reform Church.

The building investigation revealed that Raggedad®tinad been quite thoroughly
modernised internally, and most of the original ataton and fixtures and fittings

had been removed. Externally, other than two latentieth century additions, the

appearance of the building had changed little sawestruction. Four main phases of
construction and modification were identified.

For the use of Blackburn with Darwen Borough Colnci © OA North: June 2009
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Following a program of internal stripping of muchtloe later twentieth century fabric
to reveal the original fabric for recording purpesi was revealed that the original
structure comprised two main halls probably usedtéaching, one on the ground
floor and the main, large hall on the first flodhese were surrounded by ancillary
rooms, which were all connected by two corridord amo staircases. The main halls
were probably used for teaching. Very little reneainof the fabric of the original
structure, the most interesting features that didain being the iron trusses in the
main hall on the first floor and the stained glassdows and Roll of Honour which
were removed for repair and restoration. Two timpstiles were also found during
the demolition of the building.

For the use of Blackburn with Darwen Borough Colnci © OA North: June 2009
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1. INTRODUCTION

11

111

1.1.2

1.1.3

1.2

1.2.1

1.2.2

CIRCUMSTANCES OF PROJECT

The building currently known as the Ardley Centred&Ragged School in,
Blackburn has been earmarked for redevelopmentderao build an older
persons’ extra care scheme. The school is of lbestbrical significance,
providing for the poor and needy and, as a resltcondition for the
archaeological recording of the building was atéatto the planning consent.
Following advice from the Lancashire County ArcHagyg Service (LCAS)
and a verbal brief, Blackburn with Darwen Borouglu@cil (BDBC),
commissioned Oxford Archaeology North (OA North) tarry out a
programme of archaeological building recording.eSaccess and other
arrangements were organised by Capita Symonds'aiftué BDBC.

An English Heritage Level I/ll standard (Englishridege 2006) photographic
and brief written record of the building was cadrieut together with a desk-
based assessment, which comprised a search of poliished and
unpublished records. This report sets out the t®saof the desk-based
assessment and building survey in the form of anteputlining the findings.

The work was carried out in three stages, the extef the building being
photographed in November 2009, the interior indpacbeing carried out in
April 2009, and the now removed war memorials pgaphed in May 2009.

LOCATION, TOPOGRAPHY AND GEOLOGY

The Ragged School is positioned on Bent StreetKBlarn, which is situated
at the southern end of Stonyhurst Road, approxign@t&km to the west of
Blackburn town centre (NGR SD 6778 2783) (Fig 1).

The site and the area surrounding it is generalrgll and urban in nature, the
school being surrounded by two-storey blocks ofsflarhe solid geology
consists of Lower Westphalian coal measures antstonke grit (IGS 1979),
whilst the drift geology is mainly of glacial origiand consists of till and sand
and gravels (BGS 1977).

For the use of Blackburn with Darwen Borough Colnci © OA North: June 2009
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2. METHODOLOGY

21

211

22
221

2.3
23.1

2.3.2

PROJECT DESIGN

A project designAppendix )1 was produced by OA North, following a verbal
brief provided by LCAS, which outlined the obje@svof the project and the
methodology. For the most part the methodology wadkered to in full.
However, the requirement for a map regression wtsivawn by LCAS.

DOCUMENTARY RESEARCH

Research was undertaken at the Lancashire Courtigrée Office (CRO) in
Preston, and the Community History section at Btack central library,
where the following sources were consulted:

. trade directories;

. school records;

. unpublished reports and papers;

. relevant cartographic material;

. relevant photographic material;

. general secondary sources including general losabry books and

local newspaper records.

BUILDING RECORDING SURVEY

Descriptive Recorda brief visual inspection of the exterior of theilding
was undertaken, and written records using OA Nprtiformarecord sheets
were made of the buildings’ location, together wahdescription of its
function, materials and possible date. The intemsgpection of the building
was similarly limited to cursory description of theature of the layout.
Therefore, a full record of the nature of the b was not obtained. The
internal record was obtained following soft stripgiof the interior. The level
of descriptive survey equated to an English Heetagvel I/l type record
(English Heritage 2006).

Photographic Archive:black and white prints of the building were proédc
utilising 35mm SLR equipment. Digital images wersoaproduced using
DSLR equipment, primarily used for illustrative poses. The photographic
archive consists of internal and external viewstld appearance of the
building, and detailed photographs of specific @edtural details that do not
show or are not clearly represented on general svifvigs 2 and 3). The
photographs were taken from viewpoints that max@mike amount of

For the use of Blackburn with Darwen Borough Colnci © OA North: June 2009
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2.3.3

24

24.1

information available and a variety of wide angied delephoto lenses were
used, including shift lenses. Tripods were usedlfigphotographs.

Drawn Record:no drawings other than general site location amatqgraphic
location plans were produced.

ARCHIVE

A full professional archive has been compiled isardance with the project
design Appendix }, and in accordance with current IfA and Englisérithge
guidelines (English Heritage 1991). The paper aigitad archive will be
deposited in Lancashire County Record Offtze completion of the project
and copies forwarded to the HER, Preston. The And Humanities data
Service (AHDS) online database proje@Qnline Access to index of
Archaeological InvestigationgOASIS) will be completed as part of the
archiving phase of the project.

For the use of Blackburn with Darwen Borough Colnci © OA North: June 2009



Ragged School and Ardley Centre, Blackburn, LaricassArchaeological Building Recording 10

3. DOCUMENTARY RESEARCH

3.1 HISTORICAL BACKGROUND

3.1.1 The Blackburn Ragged School was established in 1881John Thomas
Walkden and James Dixon, both of whom had a dé&sipetter the lives of the
many poor children that they often encountered Iftdmn 1931). Dixon,
originally from Annan in Scotland, was a deeplyigelus man and was
already involved in Sunday school teaching (Moo®8Q). He was appalled
by the poverty, deprivation and living conditionshis students, about which
he was determined to do something. He met Walkdéfebruary 1881, when
both were attending a children’s mission serviogl, ey struck an immediate
friendship. In the late summer of that year a grotisgome 50 teachers from
various Sunday Schools, of different denominatiorBlackburn, met to share
their concerns about the plight of poor childrenthie town, and set about
setting up a ‘Ragged Schooibid). Dixon and Walkden visited Charter Street
Ragged School in Manchester in October 1881, whieeg met Thomas
Johnson (the conductor of the school) a charisnfaice who attended the
Charter Street School as an orphan child. He m$eet position of manager of
one of the largest warehouses in Manchester angengonal commitment to
his own school and Christian faith filled Dixon aMdalkden with much
enthusiasmikid). The group of teachers met again on Octobét 1881,
when Dixon was elected Secretary and Walkden elebteasureribid).

3.1.2 Initially, the school was housed in small rentedmises on the corner of Lune
Street and Leyland Street. The first meeting oexlron Saturday October
22" 1881 when 150 children crowded in to the smalldig to ‘feast on
buns and coffee’iljid). Sunday School teaching began on Sunday October
239 1881, and 198 children attendeithiq). Sunday School lessons were
conducted ‘twice on the Sabbath’, the early schamikers being ‘sent home
with wearied brains and aching hearts from the sieathenism of their
young charge’ (Chilman 1931). The word ‘Ragged’ vaasapt description of
the attendees, for they are described as beingedhgn both body and mind
with bare heads, bare legs and bare feleitl). The school was founded prior
to national organisations, such as the SocietyHerPrevention of Cruelty to
Children (SPCC), so free meals were thus started bo Sunday and also
during the week, and an old clothes room benefiteshy children over the
years to come (Chilman 1931).

3.1.3 The upper floors of the building on the corner aine Street and Leyland
Street were refurbished in November 1881, whiclovadd separation of
children by age (Moore 1990). A diverse range divaes were carried out at
the school and the following list, outlined in Medr1990), illustrates the wide
ranging nature of the work; Sunday afternoon schewkrage attendance
450); Sunday evening school (average attendance S2@day infant school
(average attendance 150); Mission services evemsday and Thursday;
Adult class (average attendance 75); Band of Hdpact distribution; Free
breakfasts every Sunday morning during winter (abtQ00 each winter);
Free dinners, about 200 children received free smupotato hash every
Monday at 1pm; Sick and benevolent committee; &ifé Drum band; Annual

For the use of Blackburn with Darwen Borough Colnci © OA North: June 2009
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3.1.4

3.1.5

3.16

3.1.7

sea-side trip, about 450 children taken for the ttayytham; Free reading
room and library; Penny Bank; Cottage meetingsnihgeeducational classes;
Sewing classes; Boy’s brigade; Choir; Old clothesps

Dixon, employed as a joiner since 1878, and teachirSunday School on the
Sabbath (Moore 1990), gave it up to work full tietethe Ragged School as
Superintendent of the Boy’s Rest and Boy’s Brigadee Boys’ Rest was set
up to provide temporary accommodation for up tohb&eless boys until a
more permanent solution to the plight of homeldsklen was soughilgid).

It was housed at 18 Fielden Street. Some of the Bold magazines in order
to raise money and this was so successful thatmualy 1885 the school
decided to produce their own, called ‘Rags and &siband it had average
sales of 7500 copies per month in its first yegypendix 2 (ibid). The Boys’
Rest became very successful and it was decidec thiatilar facility for girls’
was needed, which was housed in rented accommadatiol8 Paradise
Terrace ipid). Limited finances forced a change in accommodatibe boys’
rest being transferred to Paradise Street and iti® Rest was moved to less
costly premises. Ultimately, both the Boys’ andI&irest became Blackburn
Orphanage located in Wilpshire, which opened in1189

As numbers attending the school grew the premisssged unsuitable and new
premises were sought (Chilman 1931). A bazaar st raise funds for a
new school site, and the proceeds enabled the agsmchat £150, of a
redundant building on Bent Street, belonging td*8ter's Day School (Plate
1), which was empty and had been condemitad, (Moore 1990). In 1895
the entire school was moved into an empty mill arlély Street while the old
dilapidated St Peters’ School building was demelisand a new building was
constructed on the same site (Chilman 1931). Tuk two years to complete
and on July § 1897 the foundation stones were laid by Earl Comp¢P,
together with Walkden and Dixon, during a ceremamlyich attracted a
substantial crowd (Blackburn Times™0uly 1897 B362.76)) (Plate 2). The
architects of the new school building were MesBrgggs and Wolstenholme,
and the projected cost was £2600 €it). The school was officially opened on
Saturday October"81898 by Mrs R A Yerburgh (Plate 5).

In 1902, the same year that one of the founders Jlhomas Walkden died,
the twenty first anniversary of the school was loedeed and a memorial tablet
to Walkden was unveiled (Blackburn Times"2Bctober 190B362.76). By
1907 the new school building was becoming too smadicessitating an
extension at a cost of some £750 (Blackburn Tim&S December 1907
B362.76; Chilman 1931). The architects were the same Med$niggs and
Wolstenholme. The structure was to be a two-stadaition built in the same
style, and would contain a room (mission-hall) ddpaf holding seating for
200 people. The foundation stone was laid on Sagudd August 1908 by
Robert A. Yerburgh and was opened free of debteadmber the same year
by Mr T Hart JP(Chilman 1931). the total cost being £936 10s (Bbacn
Times, 268' December 1908362.76).

The school continued to carry out its vital workdan 1914 improvements
were carried out to the building, such as instalfatof electric lighting
throughout and removal of some internal walls whiwére replaced with
folding partitions (Blackburn Times, 2IMarch 1914 B362.76)). This was

For the use of Blackburn with Darwen Borough Colnci © OA North: June 2009
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3.1.8

3.1.9

expected to cost £600, which was to be again furmed bazaar. The First
World War effort required that some of the stafftgdight and every male of
age went to ‘do his bit’ (Chilman 1931). In totaB9 past and present students
took part, and their names are inscribed on théddlonour (Plate 4).

The Roll of Honour (Plates 4 and 23-24) was undeim Sunday 28
September 1919 by Sir Henry Hibbert, a gift from @monymous donor
(Blackburn Times, 4 October 1918362.76). It was made of alabaster and a
mosaic depicts the figure of St George, in the re¢nqtanel. The inscriptions
read ‘Their name liveth for ever more’ and ‘In mesof past members of
this school who fell in the great European War,4t2919," followed by the
names of the 54 who made the ‘supreme sacrifice’.

In 1931, the year of the jubilee of the Ragged $tha commemorative
booklet outlining the history of the Ragged Schaals produced (Chilman
1931), the details of which have informed muchhié historical background.
During the great depression of 1929-1931, when hiee of cotton had
depreciated to almost nothing, the cotton townsLancashire, such as
Blackburn, suffered greatly. The Ragged School cagan stepped into the
breech and provided much needed assistance to pumest members of
society. By 1931 there were two Sunday SchoolsZ@@n and 6-30pm, and
12 classrooms were fully occupied by adults ageanfrl6é to 60 ipid).
Thirteen classes of mainly young scholars were hpktairs, and downstairs
22 classes comprised 300-400 children. There waafant room containing
approximately 100-150 children, all under sevenryed age ipid). In 1936
James Dixon died, and off' @ay 1937 two stained glass windows, depicting
scenes from the life of St Paul, were unveiled areddedicated to his memory
and that of John Thomas Walkden (Plates 25-28).

3.1.10 On 4" June 1950, a memorial to the Second World Warwmagiled by Mr J

W Phillips MBE, who was the honorary treasurer e school (Blackburn
Times, 2% June 195(B362.76). It was made of carved oak with a bronze
tablet. The inscription read ‘1939-1945 To the @lasf God and to
commemorate the loyalty, devotion and courage ef ybung men of this
Blackburn Ragged School who served King and coudtnyng the Second
World War, this platform was erected’. A list ofode men who made the
‘supreme sacrifice’ followed (Plate 8). The curremhereabouts of this
memorial are unknown.

3.1.11In 1952 the Blackburn Development PldD2(BLA) set out proposals that

involved redeveloping the area around the Raggbd@cDescribed as one of
Blackburn’s ‘dingiest quarters’, an area of 18 adpeunded by King Street,
Montague Street, part of Nab Lane, Dugdale St(eedaves Street, Little Peel
Street, George Street West and Leyland Street avé toutlined and plans
were passed by Blackburn Civic Development Commiitte1957 (Blackburn
Times, 18 September 195B362.76). Plate 7, although undated, appears to
show empty plots, as well as cobbled streets, artlum School and may have
been taken during the development. The Ragged §ch@s to remain
however, and was to be in a more appropriate opgimg or ‘garden suburb’,
with more room for expansion. The area was to cbri three-storey flats
and two-storey houses, most of which still survitevas one of the first of

For the use of Blackburn with Darwen Borough Colnci © OA North: June 2009



Ragged School and Ardley Centre, Blackburn, LaricassArchaeological Building Recording 13

the areas in the 1952 master plan to be redevelegadnh outlined the pattern
of redevelopment for the following 15 years.

3.1.12 Following the redevelopment, the school's youthivéteds increased, and

plans to extend the premises, including a two-gtdreilding, which would
accommodate 200 members, were put forward (Laneaslvening
Telegraph, 11 July 1958B362.76). At this time the school claimed to have
the oldest youth club in the British Isles. In 19@h appeal for funds to pay
for the extension scheme was launched, and 8hCx9ober 1966 the ‘ultra
modern’ new youth centre was opened by Earl Pelelck®urn Times, 2%
October 1971B362.76). It was opened and an order of proceedings was
produced (Chilman 1930 64). The improvements included a large youth
room with coffee bar (Plate 8) and dance floorjliealds and games room, a
large modern kitchen, storage room, ladies’ powdem, shower room and
cloakrooms, reception room, a chapel and a ‘bedlytilecorated church’
(Blackburn Times, 2% October 1971B362.76). The improvements were
perhaps more aptly described in 1974 as ‘guttind) r@building’ (Blackburn
Times, 28 January 1978362.76). The school kept its name despite the
derogatory connotations and increase in living daats, which forced the
renaming of many other ragged schodbsd(.

3.1.13 By the mid 1970s, the building had become too ldagethe needs of the

school and, combined with rising costs and fallibgyas decided to put it up
for sale (Lancashire Evening Telegraph J8lly 1976B362.76, Plate 9). Many
of the original reasons for setting up the schaad kisappeared, most now
being handled by the state. The school carriednroname only, and was
purchased by Lancashire County Council who lease#t bart of the building
to provide a day care scheme for the elderly, aljhothe Ragged School
continued some religious and charitable work (Lahaa Evening Telegraph,
24" February 1978362.73). The change was made on™RFebruary 1979
following building conversion and improvements (kashire Evening
Telegraph, 2% December 1978362.73).

3.1.141In 1995 the Ragged School became part of the UnRetbrm Church

3.2

3.2.1

3.2.2

(www.blackburnraggedschoolurc.co)uk

DOCUMENTARY SOURCES

Trade Directories:Blackburn Ragged School is first listed by nameha
1885 edition of Barrett’s Blackburn and Districtr&atory. It is simply named,
together with the name of the caretaker, T Prodtorthe street directory
section (Bent Street), and there is no other fstihis omitted from the 1887
edition, but then is listed from 1888, right thrbugntil 1957, in the street
directory.

Collections held at Blackburn Central Library:the community history
section of the central library holds a substangiadhive (Q64) of material
relating to the Ragged School, most of which is@grehensive collection of
newspaper cuttingsBB62.73). These, together with copies of the school
magazine and other pamphlets, provide a detailsiryi of the development
of the Ragged School. The nature of the archiwaiibned inAppendix 2
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4. BUILDING SURVEY RESULTS

4.1

41.1

4.1.2

4.2

42.1

4.2.2

INTRODUCTION

The survey comprised external and internal phofdgcarecording and brief
visual inspection, in order to provide an accounthe nature of the fabric of
the school. The interior was initially inspected &g OA North buildings
archaeologist, from which it was discovered thatmof the original fabric
was hidden behind modern fittings. Therefore, aterimal soft strip was
required in order to adequately record the buildikgllowing on-site
consultation between the OA North buildings archagist, the demolition
contractor and a representative from Capita Symonwlsehalf of BDBC, a
plan of action was agreed to remove most of thedatlentified as not being
part of the original layout of the building. Followg the soft strip, the interior
was recorded.

Prior to the commencement of the building recordsugvey, the Roll of
Honour Gection 4.2.pand both of the stained glass windo®gtion 4.2.h
were removed in order to protect them from any dgmalhese were
inspected and photographed separategctions 4.2.18nd4.2.14.

DESCRIPTION AND LAYOUT

General Description:ithe building is of two stories (with a small ce}land
lies on an east/west axis, along the north sidBenit Street (Plate 11, Fig 1).
The building comprises two main parts; an L-shapeth building and a later,
east wing. The L-shaped part lies parallel to Btnéet. There are two gablets
located on the north slope of the roof. The west ehthe main part has a
north/south wing, which has a hipped roof. An esisig, added in 1908 (see
Section 3.1.5 lies perpendicularly to the main building. THias a half-
hipped roof on the north side and two gablets enstbuth. Added to the main
building are two late twentieth century single-storextensions. There are
three ventilation cowls located on the roof ridgdsthe main building. A
single brick flue is located on the west elevatibthe main building.

Nearly all of the structure is constructed from iaitk, including various
decorative elements, such as flat arch window heaxds decorative diaper
work on some of the gables (Plate 12). A low brcKI is also located at the
front of the building. There are two single-storégt-roofed extensions,
attached to the north and west elevations. The egtension (grey brick)
contains kitchens, whilst a western extension casepra boiler room and
games room. The fenestration consists mainly ofelamulti-light timber

framed windows, which appear to be original (Plhtg, although a number
have been replaced by PVCu frames and late twbntentury timber

casements. To the right of the main door on thatfelevation the three
foundations stones, laid by the co-founders andl Gampton, are visible (see
Plate 13).
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4.2.3

4.2.4

4.2.5

4.2.6

4.2.7

4.2.8

Layout: the main entrance is located on Bent Street, asall lobby is the

first room to be encountered. The ground floor g Ragged School (post-
internal stripping) has numerous rooms, includintarge main central hall

(Plate 14) and a slightly smaller room at the esmst (the Church, added in
1908) (Plate 17). There are two rooms at the wedtaé the building (boiler

room and games room), and there are two stairc&mae of the rooms,
including the kitchens and offices at the rear, tre@lgames room and boiler
room at the west end, are late twentieth centudytiatis. Prior to the internal

soft strip, more rooms were present. However, thvesee removed, as they
were all of twentieth century origin and obscuree original layout.

The main hall was partially obscured by a modespsuded ceiling and when
this was removed the ceiling was revealed to cordfigolled steel joists
(RSJ), some of which appear to have been insedied (Plate 15). It was
apparent that the ceiling had been either reparesirengthened; some of the
beams appear to be part of the original fabric,|stlather have clearly been
inserted, and burn-marks were visible, consistettt terch cutting (Plate 15),.
The room was plainly decorated, all of which appdao be of late twentieth
century origin and there was a stage at the eakstHmwever, the removal of
an inserted partition wall revealed part of thevpges decoration, which
consisted of a flush bead moulded dado (PlateAdess to the later kitchens
was available through this room.

The other room of interest was the Church roomhatdast end of the main
building, which was of modern appearance (Plate THg north wall of this
room originally contained the stained glass winddiat had been removed
prior to inspection (Plates 17, 26 and 27). Lidlse of interest was contained
in this room, other than a hardwood six panel daod door surround. A
suspended ceiling was removed, which revealed box&$J beams.

The two staircases were of identical open-well tmicson. Both had
landings, but the east staircase had an additlanding and flight (Plate 18).
The steps were of stone and the strings were pldin. balustrades were of
painted wrought iron and were quite decorative, s®iimg of repeating
straight and wavy vertical bars topped with scraksch panel being riveted to
each other (Plate 17). The newels were turned geawbod, and the handrall
was of hardwood. Both staircases had flush beadddsd The west staircase
had a tall multi-light window.

There was a small basement accessed via the aoatidhe base of the west
stairs. This appeared to contain the boiler, ameths evidence to suggest
there was a coal chute.

Following stripping, the first floor was revealedtiave a similar layout to the
ground floor the main interest being the large ntaah (Plate 19). The roof
was obscured by a polystyrene suspended ceilingshwiras removed during
the internal soft strip to reveal five steel quadpaar or arched trusses, the
joints of the webs being riveted together (Platg 28d the heel of each truss
was supported on a stone corbel (Plate 21). Alldlaer curved chords were
joined together with a longitudinal member. The xajmé each truss was
obscured by the upper ceiling. This type of truss wbviously used in order
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to maximise the space. There were two decorativeilagon grilles in the
upper ceiling (Plate 22).

4.2.9 A vertical boxed-in ventilation flue was visible ¢ine east wall, as well as a
large scar, which is where the roll of honour wagnmorial was originally
located Section 3.1.&nd Plates 4 and 23-25), which was inspected atghar
(seeSection 4.1.nd4.2.19. The west end of the room contained two further
rooms, which appeared to be part of the origingbld. There were two tall
leaded windows located on the north wall, whichesgpd to be part of the
original fabric.

4.2.10 At the east end of the first floor of the main binly, a further flight of steps
leads up to a large room, above the Church roontherground floor. This
room is all plain in decoration and RSJ beams supgpe ceiling. There is a
small kitchen attached to the north-west cornenclvtexhibits some of the
original plaster moulded skirting. An apparentlpdked aperture on the west
wall of this room suggests access to the mainwedl once available.

4.2.11 The west end of the first floor contains two roaofisimilar dimensions as the
corresponding rooms on the ground floor. Little ioferest was observed
within these rooms except for a corresponding boxetilation flue and a
built-in cupboard that appeared to be part of thgircal fabric.

4.2.12 Additional Off-Site Featuresthe Roll of Honour was found to be of identical
appearance to the photograph printed in the Blatkbimes in 1919 (Plates 4
and 24). It is made of light coloured marble/alabgsvhich appears to have
been stained a slightly darker colour. It comprisaedous separate sections
with no apparent evidence of holding the piecesttogy, other than when
mounted on the wall. The layout consisted of thigenels laid out
symmetrically, with two wide flanking panels, andnarrow central panel
containing a mosaic depiction of St George (Pl&g Qriginally, there were
339 names inlaid on the memorial, all of whom weast students who took
part in the First World War. The central panel,opelthe mosaic, lists the
names of those who fell during the conflict. Thesaio panel is particularly
fine and is of gold leaf, enamel and mother of pdameasured (maximum
measurements) approximately 2.68m (8’ 9 ¥2") lon@@®2m high (6’ 11 2").
The mosaic panel measures 0.444m (17 %2") wide @3m.(43") high.

4.2.13 The two stained glass windows, removed from ther€@hwoom, were found
to be in good condition and were still set withmlter frames, although these
were damaged (Plates 26 and 27). Each measuredn@hading the timber
frame) some 0.67m wide (26 %") by 1.72m (5 7 %igH) and reinforced
with four, one inch square metal bars (probably evaginal). Each window
contained a dedication panel to John Walkden aneddixon (Plates 28 and
29). Both windows depict scenes from the life oP&tl.

4.2.14 During demolition of the Ragged School in May 20@9time capsule was
discovered below the foundation stone (Plate 30)ak a wide necked glass
bottle/jar with a glass and cork stopper and memkssome 0.245m (9 2")
high by 0.95m (3 34”) in diameter. A maker’'s nameuttdl & Co, St Helens”
is evident on the stopper. The contents were @siside, and comprised a
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rolled-up edition of the Blackburn Times, datedusaay, 3 July 1897. Inside
this, are other, unknown, documents. At the timewoiting the capsule
remained un-opened.

4.2.15 A further capsule was discovered below the foundasitone of the east wing,
added in 1908. This was a square jar measuring §08%en (3 %4”) square by
0.22m (8 ¥2") high. It also contained a rolled upvepaper. The capsule
remains unopened.
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5. DISCUSSION OF RESULTS

5.1

5.1.1

5.2

5.2.1

5.2.2

DiscussioN

The Ragged School has been thoroughly modernidechally, and most of
the original decoration and fixtures and fittingsmoved. Externally, other
than two late twentieth century additions, the apaece of the building had
changed little since construction. Documentary asde and building
inspection revealed there to have been three niesgs of building:

Phase one included the original construction of rie@n building in 1897-
1895 Gection 3.1.5

Phase two was the addition of the east wing addd807 Section 3.1.8

Phase three included some internal modificatiortbenearly twentieth century
(Section 3.1.)

Phase four began in the 1960s and resulted in nmtelhnal modification
(Section 3.1.1¢ described as the ‘gutting and rebuilding’ of theilding
(Blackburn Times, 28 January 1978362.76).

CONCLUSIONS

Following the removal of much of the later twerttietentury fabric, it was

revealed that the original structure comprised main halls, probably used
for teaching, one on the ground floor and the mlairge hall, in the first floor.

These were surrounded by ancillary rooms, connesyetvo corridors and

two staircases. Very little remains of the fabrictlee original structure, the
most obvious surviving features being the irongessin the main hall on the
first floor.

Some original features, such as the stained glasdows and the Roll of
Honour, were removed from the building, and are@eepaired and restored.
These will be installed in the new structure tacbastructed on the site of the
demolished building. Two time capsules found duriingg demolition will be
reburied, together with new time capsules, withie mew building.
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Plate 1: lllustration of St Peter's Old Day Sch®lackburn Times, 8 August 1908)

Plate 2: Laying the foundation stone of the BlackibRagged School, July’3.897 (Provided by BWDBC for the
Cotton Town Digitisation Project)
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THE ROLL OF. HONOUR.

Plate 4: The Roll of Honour, as illustrated in Blackburn Times, % October 1919



Plate 5: Illustration of the rear of the Raggedd®thas depicted on the cover of the Jubilee Pag§@hilman,
1931)

Plate 6: The Second World War Memorial, as illustian the Blackburn Times, Jun® 2950



Plate 7: View of the rear elevation of Blackburrggad School. Unknown date, but note the cobblesksin the
foreground (Provided by E Binns for the Cotton Tdwigitisation Project)



Plate 8: The Rev Royston Bishop chatting to Telelgn@porter Vivien Arabin, in the new Youth Cerditethe
Ragged School (Provided by LET for the Cotton Tdgitisation Project)



Blackburn Ragged School,

Plate 9: View of the rear of the Ragged School (amhire Evening Telegraph, Jul{} 8976)



Plate 11: The front elevation of the Ragged School



Plate 13: The Foundation stones on the main bgldin



Plate 14: The main hall on the ground floor



Plate 16: Original decoration revealed in the gobfioor main hall



Plate 18: Example of the staircases



Plate 19: General view of the main hall on thet fisor

Plate 20: Example of a truss in the main hall anfifst floor
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Plate 21: Example of a corbel supporting a trustherfirst floor

Plate 22: Decorative ceiling vent in the first fidwll



Plate 23: Original position of the Roll of Honoarthe main hall on the first floor

Plate 24: The removed Roll of Honour



Plate 25: The Mosaic panel within the Roll of Honou



Plate 26: Removed window commemorating John Plate 27: Removed window commemorating James
Walkden Dixon



Plate 28: Memorial to John Walkden

Plate 29: Memorial to James Dixon




Plate 30: The time capsule found beneath the fdiomatone
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APPENDIX 1: PROJECT DESIGN

1.1
111

1.1.2

1.13

1.2
121

1.2.2

2.2

INTRODUCTION
PROJECT BACKGROUND

Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council (BDBC) hagjuested that Oxford Archaeology
North (OA North) submit proposals to undertake dingd recording of the Ragged School
and Ardley Centre, Bent Street, Blackburn, LanaasfiNiGR SD 677 278) prior to proposed
conversion works. The Blackburn Ragged School wened on the #50ctober 1881 by a

number of Presbyterian, Wesleyan, Congregationd atmer churches with a view to
providing an interdenominational school for poayged street children. Its mission was;

...to impart moral and religious instruction to padildren, their parents and relations, and
to carry the Gospel to those who from whateveruitstances have not yet come under its
influence. To provide and distribute free mealsthihg, coals, to the poor and needy,
especially children, to assist in the Battle ofeldfestitute and neglected boys and girls, and
generally to help the aged sick and poor.

The building has provided charitable services ®Blorough for over a 100 years, and in the
1940s it was used as an evacuation centre. By 3983 people passed through the doors
each week. In 1960 it was considered for Compulddmychase but due to its position,
unique charitable organisation and that of its@aable good appearance and construction it
was decided to maintain it. However, the congregatias since dwindled and is now only
used on Wednesdays (luncheon club and youth chdbsandays for worship.

On the first and second floor are two wall plaque wiemorials, dedicated to the First and
Second World War, and the church has an ornateestajlass window. The buildings are
proposed for demolition in order to build an olgersons’ extra care scheme. This will
involve relocating the church, the war memoriald #re foundation stones. The school is of
local historical significance, providing for theqraand needy and, as a result, a condition for
the archaeological recording of the building wasacited to the planning consent.
Subsequently, a verbal brief provided by the plagnarchaeologist, Doug Moir of
Lancashire County Archaeological Services (LCAS}lioed the requirement for a desk-
based assessment and a building record, whictbeiiredominately a photographic record.
The following project design details the work regdito satisfy the planning condition.

OXFORD ARCHAEOLOGY NORTH

OA North has considerable experience of therpnetation and analysis of buildings of all
periods, having undertaken a great number of samalllarge-scale projects during the past
30 years. Such projects have taken place within glenning process, to fulfil the
requirements of clients and planning authoritiesyéry rigorous timetables. OA North has
much experience of the recording and analysis afoua types of school buildings
particularly in East Lancashire, having recentlydemaken work associated with the
Building Schools for the Future (BSLF) project.

OA North has the professional expertise ammbuees to undertake the project detailed
below to a high level of quality and efficiency. OMorth is an Institute of Field
Archaeologists (IFA) registered organisation, registration number 17, and all its
members of staff operate subject to the IFA Codéafduct.

OBJECTIVES

The archaeological programme of work will congi$ a discussion of the plan, form,
function and history of the Ragged School, togethigh an permanent archive photographic
record of its current appearance. A photographaone: of fabric and features currently
obscured by later fabric will also be providdah achieve this, the following listed specific
aims are proposed.

Desk-Based Assessmeii provide a history of the origin and developtmehthe Ragged
School, through consultation of the documentaryom@cand through a historic map
regression, to draw together into a single docuraihe available sources of information.
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Building Investigation to provide a photographic and brief written recarfdthe main
building of the Ragged School to English Heritageel 1/11 type standard (English Heritage
2006).

Report and Archivea written report will assess the significance & tlata generated by this
programme within a local context. It will presehetresults of the building investigation. An
archive will be produced to English Heritage guiide$ (English Heritage 1991).

METHOD STATEMENT
DESK-BASED ASSESSMENT

Introduction: a desk-based assessment is usually undertaketheadirst stage of a
programme of archaeological recording, prior taHer field investigation. It is not intended
to reduce the requirement for fieldwork, but itlaitovide an appraisal of the archaeological
or historical significanceThe focus of the assessment will be the schooldimgl but
mention will be made of the immediate surrounditgprovide a context for the historical
background of the site.

The following research will be undertaken as appat@, depending on the availability of
source material. The level of such work will betdied by the time scale of the project. The
results will be analysed using the set of criteilsed to assess the national importance of an
ancient monument (DoE 1990). This aids in the priad®on of the significance or otherwise
of the site, and assessment during the plannincegso

Documentary and Cartographic Materialthis will include an appraisal of the data in the
Historic Environment Record (HER) Preston, the GpuRecord Office (CRO), Preston, and

local studies section of the local library. Otheurkes such as online information and the OA
North research archive will also be consulted. Deglal at the National Monuments Record
(NMR), Swindon may also be checked for addition&imation if required.

A review of all known and available resources dbimation relating to the site of the
proposed development will be undertaken. The aithisfis to give consideration not only to
the application site, in terms of historical andraeological contexts. These include;

(1) relevant published sources; to include articles, mgional and local journals,

(i) relevant unpublished documentary sources; to imgluehere appropriate, reports
compiled by heritage conservation professionalssindent theses,

(iif)  primary sources; to include trade directories, dedmbrough records and probate
inventories

(iv)  data held in local and national archaeological ukztas,
(V) printed and manuscript maps,

(vi)  aerial and other photographicfillustrative evidence

Lancashire HER:the HER is a database of known archaeologica sitthin the County. It
also holds an extensive library of published matstior consultation.

County Record Office, Prestorthe office holds the main source of primary docotagon,
both maps and documents, for the site and its sndiag area.

BUILDING RECORDING

Photographic Record:a photographic archive will be produced utilising35mm SLR
camera to produce black and white contact prindehEphotograph will be repeated using a
digital SLR (10 megapixels). A variety of focal fgth lenses will be used in order to provide
the best coverage. Perspective control or ‘shifsdés’ which eliminate converging verticals
will also be utilised if required. A full photogrhje index will be produced. The archive will
comprise the following:

0] the general external appearance and settingeobtilding including right angle views
(where possible) of therincipal elevation,

(ii) the overall appearance pfincipal rooms and circulation areas,
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(iii) any external or internal detail, structural architectural, which is relevant to the
design, development and use of the building, anatiwtoes not show adequately
on general photographs,

(iv) any internal detailed views of features of espegiahitectural interest, fixtures and
fittings (specifically the First and Second WorldakWmemorials and the stained
glass window in the chapel), or fabric detail reletto phasing the building,

(v) a rectified photograph of the stained glass windmesent in the chapel can be
produced if necessary. From this an elevation drguwmay be produced, if required,
in the future.

Either the contact print sheets/prints or digitatsions of these will be submitted to LCAS
for approval upon development. The LCAS will bep@ssible for returning the contact
sheets to OA North for inclusion in the report @mdject archive.

Drawn Record:no site drawings other than general site locafitams and a photographic
location will be produced for the building recorglint is assumed that the client will provide
suitable plans. The map regression will be preseasea series of plates.

Written Record:a general visual inspection of the buildings wil bndertaken utilising the
OA North building investigation proforma sheetsgéneral description of the buildings will
be undertaken to English Heritage Level I/l stadda

The written record will include:

(@ the precise location of the building including N@Rd address,

(i) a summary account of the plan, form, fabric, fumttiage and development
sequence of the building together with an accofith@ past and present use of the
building,

(iii) a summary account of the fixtures and fittings asged with the building, and their

purpose, specifically the First and Second Worldr \Waemorials and the stained
glass window in the chapel,

(iv) identification of key architectural featuremdluding fixtures and fittings) which
should be preserved in-situ (if necessary),

(iv) a discussion of the relative significance of roomithin the building,

Recording Constraints:parts of the original internal fabric of the Radg&chool are
obscured by later fabric which dates mainly to thge twentieth century. The LCAS
planning archaeologist has stated that this museb®ved prior to the commencement of
the internal inspection of the building. It is thfare intended to carry out all of the internal
recording following the internal soft strip of tHater material. Liaison between BDBC,
demolition contractors and OA North (and the LCASnping archaeologist if necessary)
must be carried out prior to the soft strip andrategy for the archaeological recording must
be agreed in advance.

The stained glass window and war memorials may teée removed in advance of the soft
strip in order to prevent any damage. If this isessary then they must be recorded prior to
the soft strip on a separate mobilisation (see BaZa Otherwise they will be recorded
following the soft strip. Any delays caused by tlenolition contractors will be subject to an
additional cost variation.

REPORT /ARCHIVE

Report:the content of the report will comprise the follog:
0] a site location plan related to the nationatgri
(ii) a front cover to include the planning applicatinumber and the NGR,
(iii) a concise, non-technical summary of the result

(iv) an explanation to any agreed variations tolihef, including any justification for any
analyses not undertaken,

(v) a description of the methodology employed, wanklertaken and results obtained,
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(vi) copies of plans, photographs, and other ilatsbns as appropriate,

(vii) a copy of this project design, and indicatioos any agreed departure from that
design,

(viii)  the report will also include a complete bibliogrgpf sources from which data has
been derived,

(ix) a photographic index,

The report will be in the same basic format as higect design; a copy of the report can be
provided on CD, if required. Two copies of the repwill be supplied to the client and a
further digital copy to the HER.

Archive: the results of all archaeological work carried wilt form the basis for a full archive
to professional standards, in accordance with aurrEnglish Heritage guidelines
(Management of Archaeological Projecgnd edition, 1991). The project archive represent
the collation and indexing of all the data and mategathered during the course of the
project.

The deposition of a properly ordered and indexegjlept archive in an appropriate repository
is considered an essential and integral elemenll Ggfrchaeological projects by the IFA in
that organisation's code of conduct. OA North comfoto best practice in the preparation of
project archives for long-term storage. This arehnill be provided in the English Heritage
Centre for Archaeology format and a synthesis bglisubmitted to the Lancashire HER (the
index to the archive and a copy of the report). Rétth practice is to deposit the original
record archive of projects with the appropriate @guRecord Office, in this case Preston.

The Arts and Humanities Data Service (AHDS) onltilia¢abase proje€@nline Access to index
of Archaeological Investigation®©ASIS) will be completed as part of the archivpitpase of
the project.

Confidentiality: all internal reports to the client are designedi@suments for the specific use
of the Client, for the particular purpose as defiirethe project brief and project design, and
should be treated as such. They are not suitablpublication as academic documents or
otherwise without amendment or revision.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

OA North provides a Health and Safety Statementalbrprojects and maintains a Unit

Safety policy. All site procedures are in accordamith the guidance set out in the Health
and Safety Manual compiled by the Standing Confazesf Archaeological Unit Managers

(1997). A written risk assessment will be undertake advance of project commencement
and copies will be made available on request tmtdlested parties.

PROJECT MONITORING

Whilst the work is undertaken for the client, th€AS will be kept fully informed of the
work and its results and will be notified a weekadvance of the commencement of the
fieldwork in line with the usual requirements. Apyoposed changes to the project design
will be agreed with the planning archaeologist @AS in consultation with the client.

WORK TIMETABLE

Desk-Based Assessmenip to five days would be required to complete doeumentary
search, and assessment of all sources

Building Recording: approximately three days in the field will be regdi to complete this
element. This includes a separate mobilisationnef day to record the stained glass window
and war memorials if necessary.

Reports/Archive: the final report and archive will be produced witreight weeks of
completion of the fieldwork. OA North can executmjpcts at very short notice once a
formal written agreement has been received fronclieat.

STAFFING

The project will be under the direct managenwdrEmily Mercer BA (Hons) M Sc AIFA
(OA North senior project manager) to whom all cependence should be addressed.
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7.2 The desk-based assessment and fieldwork will bentaken byKarl Taylor BSc (Hons)
AlFA. Karl has much experience in the recording andyaisaof historic buildings within
the North West, and in particular, schools, hawagently worked on a number of BSF

projects.

8 INSURANCE

8.1 OA North has a professional indemnity cover t@lae of £2,000,000; proof of which can be
supplied as required.

REFERENCES

English Heritage, 199Management of Archaeological Projecégcond edition, London

English Heritage, 2006 Understanding Historic Bimidgs: A Guide to good recording practice, London
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APPENDIX 2: DOCUMENTARY SOURCES

Blackburn Ragged School Publicationghe school produced its own monthly fund-raisinggarne

as early as 1885 when it was known as ‘Rags andeRulvarious articles outlining the nature of the
schools work were included in the publications ethgr with advertisements. Many articles, such as
the laying of the foundation stones, were takemftocal newspapers such as the Blackburn Times.
Earl Compton MP wrote an article outlining the gtof the Ragged School which was published in
Volume XIII, No. 151, July 1897. The community fist section at Blackburn Central Library holds
bound copies of ‘Rags and Rubies’ from 1885 ur&d4.

After 1904, ‘Rags and Rubies’ became ‘Rough Diansgnand copies are held at Blackburn Library,
from 1904 until 1914. There is an apparent breaknduhe First World War and it then resumes until
1923. It was published bi-monthy until at least 19&hen it is mentioned in the pamphlet written by
Chilman (Chilman 1931). The publication statushef thagazine after 1931 is unknown.

The records at Blackburn Library also contain thacBburn Ragged School Annual Reports, which
outline the financial records for the year. Theatedrom 1882 until 1937, apart from years 19192192
which are either missing or unpublished.

Jubilee of Blackburn Ragged School, 1881-193his pamphlet, held in the collection at Blackburn
Library was written by Mr J Chilman to commemoréte jubilee of the school. He worked for 50
years at the Ragged School, 33 of which he was B8nhSuperintendent at the school and outlines a
brief history of the school together with a destoip of the nature of the work carried out by the
school in 1931. Various photographs of the foundeis missioners at the school are illustrated.

“Onward and Upward” 1966:this is an order of proceedings produced at the tifnthe youth centre
being rebuilt and extended in 1966. The dedicasenyvice was carried out by The Lord Bishop of
Blackburn, The Rt Reverend Dr C R Claxton DD Thdicafl opening and unveiling of the
commemorative plaque was carried out by The Rigint Hhe Earl Peel.

Newspaper Articlesthe library in Blackburn holds vast collections méwspaper cuttings on many
subjects, including The Ragged School. The eartiatts to 16 July 1897 and describes the laying of
the foundation stone. Most of the cuttings comanfrthe Blackburn Times, with some from the
Lancashire Evening Telegraph.

Annual Public Meeting: a copy of the poster advertising the annual gémeeating of the school, on
8" February 1886 is held at Blackburn Library, togetfwith an attendant letter written by James
Dixon, which accompanied admission tickets.

Hymn Sheet:at the ceremony of the opening of the school bg KrYerburgh in 1898, a pamphlet of
the hymns sung was produced. An illustration ofrtees school is also included.

Historic Photographs: various sources, including internet resources, aionhistoric photographs
pertaining to the Ragged School. These are outlimdalw as used in the desk-based assessment;

Plate 1:lllustration of St Peter’s Old Day School (BlackbTimes, & August 1908)

Plate 2: Laying the foundation stone of the Blackburn Rag&ethool, July § 1897 (Provided by
BWDBC for the Cotton Town Digitisation Project)

Plate 3: Appearance of the school (rear) as illustratethenl898 Opening Day Hymn She&6d)
Plate 4: The Roll of Honour, as illustrated in the Blackbiimes, 4 October 1919

Plate 5: lllustration of the rear of the Ragged Schooldapicted on the cover of the Jubilee Pamphlet
(Chilman, 1931)

Plate 6: The Second World War Memorial, as illustratedhia Blackburn Times, Juné®d950
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Plate 7:View of the rear elevation of Blackburn Ragged Sthtynknown date, but note the cobbled
street in the foreground (Provided by E Binns far €otton Town Digitisation Project)

Plate 8: The Rev Royston Bishop chatting to Telegraph regpovtivien Arabin, in the new Youth
Centre at the Ragged School (Provided by LET ferGbtton Town Digitisation Project)

Plate 9:View of the rear of the Ragged School (Lancashirening Telegraph, July"8.976)
Plate 10:View of the front of the Ragged School (LancasBvening Telegraph, February22978)

Other Resourcesinformation about the Ragged School was obtainech frvarious sources, the most
pertinent of which is the Cotton Town website progi by Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council.
The site traces the history of Blackburn with thepbasis being on the story of the cotton
manufacturing industry. Images and written rescair@e available on this siteww.cottontown.org
Information regarding the war memorials which wédreused in the buildings can be found at
www.ukniwm.org.uk There are three memorials listed, Nos. 51277,781&nhd 51279. The website
details the nature of the memorials together withrhaintenance history.
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